

DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION BOARD MEETING Board of Directors November 28, 2017 4:00 p.m.

Or As Soon After The Adjournment of the Desert Healthcare District Board Meeting

Jerry Stergios Building, 2nd floor Arthur H. "Red" Motley Boardroom 1140 N. Indian Canyon Drive, Palm Springs, California 92262 **This meeting is handicapped-accessible**

Page(s)

3-5

AGENDA

Item Type

Any item on the agenda may result in Board Action

A. CALL TO ORDER – President Rogers

Roll Call

Director Zendle _____Director Wortham Director Matthews Vice-President Hazen _____President Rogers

1-2 B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Action

C. PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, comments from the audience may be made on items <u>not</u> listed on the agenda that are of public interest and within the subject-matter jurisdiction of the Foundation. **The Board has a policy of limiting speakers to no more than three minutes.** The Board cannot take action on items not listed on the agenda. Public input may be offered on agenda items when they come up for discussion and/or action.

D. CONSENT AGENDA

All Consent Agenda item(s) listed below are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of items unless a Board member so requests, in which event the item(s) will be considered following approval of the Consent Agenda.

1. BOARD MINUTES

a. Meeting Minutes of October 24, 2017

- 2. FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
- **6-14** a. Consideration for Approval Foundation October 2017 Financial Statements F&A Committee approved November 14, 2017



DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION BOARD MEETING Board of Directors November 28, 2017 4:00 p.m.

Or As Soon After The Adjournment of the Desert Healthcare District Board Meeting

Jerry Stergios Building, 2nd floor Arthur H. "Red" Motley Boardroom 1140 N. Indian Canyon Drive, Palm Springs, California 92262 **This meeting is handicapped-accessible**

Page(s)		AGENDA	Item Type
	E.	DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION CEO REPORT	Information
	F.	FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE	
15-16		a. Draft Minutes of the November 14, 2017 F&A Committee Meeting	Information
17-55		b. Consideration to Approve Boys & Girls Club Ready Set Swim Jr – Service Agreement \$6,000 F&A Committee approved October 10, 2017	Action
56-57	G.	OLD BUSINESS 1. cvHIP Metrics - Alejandro Espinoza, Program Officer and Outreach Director	Information
	H.	NEW BUSINESS 1. cvHIP Marketing Plan Update	Information
	I.	LEGAL COUNSEL COMMENTS & REPORTS	Information
	J.	DIRECTOR'S COMMENTS & REPORTS	Information
	К.	ADJOURNMENT	Information

A Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Desert Healthcare District was held in the Arthur H. "Red" Motley Boardroom, Palm Springs, CA.

Attendance

<u>Members</u> Carole Rogers, RN – President Kay Hazen – Vice-President/Secretary Mark Matthews – Treasurer Dr. Les Zendle – Director

<u>Absent</u> Jennifer Wortham, Dr.PH - Director

Legal Counsel Jeffrey G. Scott

Herb K. Schultz, CEO Jeffrey C Chris Christensen, CFO Donna Craig, Senior Program Officer Alejandro Espinoza, Program Officer and Outreach Director Andrea S. Hayles, Clerk to the Board

<u>Guests</u>

Staff

None

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 4:06 p.m. by President Rogers.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

President Rogers asked for a motion to approve the agenda.

#17-36 MOTION WAS MADE by Director Matthews and seconded by Director Zendle to approve the agenda.

Motion passed unanimously.

 Roll Call Vote:

 AYES
 4 Director Zendle; Director Matthews; Vice-President Hazen

 President Rogers

NOES:0ABSTAIN:ABSENT:1 Director Wortham

Motion Passed 4-0

PUBLIC COMMENT

None

CONSENT AGENDA

Submitted for approval:

- 1. Board Minutes
 - a. Meeting Minutes of September 26, 2017
- 2. Finance and Administration
 - a. Consideration for approval Foundation September 2017 Financial Statements.

#17-37 MOTION WAS MADE by Director Zendle and seconded by Director Matthews to approve Consent Agenda. Motion passed unanimously.

Roll Call Vote: AYES 4 Director Zendle; Director Matthews; Vice-President Hazen; President Rogers

NOES:0ABSTAIN:ABSENT:1Director Wortham

Motion Passed 4-0

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT CEO REPORT

None

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

- 1. Draft Minutes of the October 10, 2017 F&A Committee Meeting
- 2. Consideration to approved FYE 06/30/2017 Audit Report for the Desert Healthcare Foundation

F&A approved October 10, 2017

Director Matthews detailed the meeting Minutes and the FYE 06/30/17 Audit Report.

#17-38 MOTION WAS MADE by Director Zendle and seconded by Director Matthews to approve the FYE 06/30/2017 Audit Report for the Desert Healthcare Foundation. Motion passed unanimously.

Roll Call Vot	e:
AYES	4 Director Zendle; Director Matthews; Director Wortham; Vice-President Hazen; President Rogers
NOES: ABSTAIN:	0

ABSENT: 1 Director Wortham

Motion Passed 4-0

OLD BUSINESS

1. cvHIP Metrics Alejandro Espinoza, Program Officer and Outreach Director explained the cvHIP metrics.

NEW BUSINESS

None

LEGAL COUNSEL COMMENTS & REPORTS

No report was given.

DIRECTOR'S COMMENTS & REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 4:09 p.m.

ATTEST:

Carole Rogers, President Desert Healthcare Foundation Board of Directors

Minutes respectfully submitted by Andrea S. Hayles, Clerk of the Board

DESERT HEALTHCA	ARE FOUNDATION	
OCTOBER 2017 FINAN	NCIAL STATEMEN	ΓS
INDE	EX	
Statement of Operations		
Balance sheet		
Allocation of Restricted Funds	3	
Deposit Detail		
Check Register		
Credit Card Expenditures		
Schedule of Grants		

	HEALTHCARE	the local at a local diversion of the local d	- 2011 (Juli 22) -							
	LANCE SHEET 1		TIES							
ALLOCATION OF MAJOR CATEGORIES/LIABILITIES										
	T/B	GENERAL	Restricted							
	1 1	Fund	Funds	Trusts						
ASSETS		a contrast contrast of								
146 Checking Pacific Premier 6718	1,737,593	149,593	1,588,000							
149 Money Market Pacific Premier Bank	1,934	1,934								
150 Petty Cash	200	200								
Total 100 CASH - UNRESTRICTED	1,739,727	151,727	1,588,000							
Accounts Receivable										
324- RSS Jr. Receivable		÷.								
Total Accounts Receivable			•							
477 ·Invt-Morgan Stanley	1									
477.2 Unrealized Gain	25,740	25,740								
477 -Invt-Morgan Stanley	1,790,730	1,429,481	361,249							
Total 477 · Invt-Morgan Stanley	1,816,470	1,455,221	361,249							
6441 488.1 Merrill Lynch Unrealized Gain	179,235	179,235								
486 - Merrill Lynch	589,493	589,493	-							
Total 486 · Merrill Lynch	768,728	768,728	•							
515 Contrib RCVB-Pressler CRT	66,928			66,92						
530 - Contrib RCVB-Guerts CRT	119,011			119,01						
601 - Prepaid payables	2,968	2,988								
Total Current Assets	4,513,853	2,378,665	1,949,249	185,93						
TOTAL ASSETS	4,513,853	2,378,665	1,949,249	185,93						
LIABILITIES & EQUITY										
Liabilities		Constant of the								
Current Liabilities										
Accounts Payable										
1000 - Accounts Payable	206,000	206,000								
1052 - Account Payable - DHCD - Alloc Expenses	132,710	132,710								
2190 - Grants Payable - Current Portion	1,749,249		1,749,249							
Total Current Llabilities	2,087,959	338,710	1,749,249							
2186 - Grant Payable - Long Term	200,000		200,000							
Total Liabilities	2,287,959	338,710	1,949,249							
Equity										
3900 Retained Earnings	2,295,496	2,109,557		185.93						
Net Income	(69,603)	(69,603)		100,001						
Total Equity	2,225,893	2,039,954		185.93						
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY	4,513,853	2,378,664		185,939						

Desert Healthcare Foundation Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through October 2017

		MONTH	-		TOTAL						
	Oct 17	Budget	\$ Over Budget	Jul - Oct 17	Budget	\$ Over Budget					
Income											
4000 · Gifts and Contributions	0	33,333	(33,333)	0	333,333	(333,333)					
4003 · Grants	0	0	0	2,000,000	300,000	1,700,000					
4007 · Grant Income - RSS Jr	2,134		2,134	16,563		16,563					
4116 · Bequests - Frederick Lowe	3,575	6,667	(3,092)	24,123	26,668	(2,545)					
4130 · Misc. Income	0	83	(83)	0	332	(332)					
8015 · Investment Interest Income	4,457	5,000	(543)	21,129	20,000	1,129					
8030 · Change in Value of CRT's	0	500	(500)	515	2,000	(1,485)					
8040 · Restr. Unrealized (Gain/Loss)	7,323	2,083	5,240	29,350	8,332	21,018					
Total Income	17,489	47,666	(30,177)	2,091,681	690,665	1,401,016					
Expense											
5001 · Accounting Services Expense	628	628	0	2,512	2,512	0					
5035 · Dues & Memberships Expense	21	100	(79)	21	400	(379)					
5057 · Investment Fees Expense	1,018	1,933	(915)	7,084	7,732	(648)					
5065 · Legal Costs Ongoing Expense	0	100	(100)	0	400	(400)					
5100 · Office Supplies Expense	207		207	207		207					
5101 · DHCD-Exp Alloc Wages& benefits	26,563	51,096	(24,533)	106,252	204,384	(98,132)					
5106 - Marketing & Communications	0	20,833	(20,833)	5,800	83,332	(77,532)					
5110 · Other Expenses	125	21	104	150	84	66					
5115 · Postage & Shipping Expense	0	8	(8)	0	32	(32)					
5120 · Professional Fees Expense	0	83	(83)	8,269	332	7,937					
5210 · RSS Jr - Expense Clearing Acct	(964)		(964)	425		425					
8051 · Major grant expense	0	25,000	(25,000)	0	100,000	(100,000)					
8052 · Grant Expense - Collective/Mini	0	1,667	(1,667)	2,000,000	6,668	1,993,332					
8053 · Grant Expense - RSS Jr	2,134		2,134	16,563		16,563					
Total Expense Before Social Services Fund	29,732	101,469	(71,737)	2,147,284	405,876	1,741,408					
5054 · Social Services Fund	8,000	2,083	5,917	14,000	8,332	5,668					
Net Income	(20,243)	(55,886)	35,643	(69,603)	276,457	(346,060)					

Desert Healthcare Foundation Balance Sheet As of October 31, 2017

			Oct 31, 17		
SSETS			han to the		
Curre	nt Assets		/		
CI	hecking/S				
	100 · C/	ASH	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	146 · Checking - Pacific Premier 6718				
1000		 Money Market - Pacific Premier 	1,934		
	Ar and the second	· Petty Cash	200		
Тс	otal Check	king/Savings	1,739,727		
0	ther Curre	ent Assets			
		· INVESTMENTS			
al contra	477	Morgan Stanley-Investments			
		477.2 · Unrealized Gain/(Loss)	25,740		
		477 · Morgan Stanley-Investments - Other	1,790,730		
	Tota	al 477 · Morgan Stanley-Investments	1,816,470		
	486	· Merrill Lynch			
		486.1 · Merrill Lynch Unrealized Gain	179,235		
		486 · Merrill Lynch - Other	589,493		
	Tota	al 486 · Merrill Lynch	768,728		
	Total 47	6-486 · INVESTMENTS	2,585,198		
	500 · CC	ONTRIBUTIONS -RCVB -CRTS			
	and the second sec	Contrib RCVB-Pressler CRT	66,928		
	530	Contrib RCVB-Guerts CRT	119,011		
		0 · CONTRIBUTIONS -RCVB -CRTS	185,939		
	601 · Pr	epaid Payables	2,988		
To	otal Other	Current Assets	2,774,125		
Total	Current A	ssets	4,513,853		
Other	Assets				
46	60 · Invest	ments - Point Center Fin			
	461 · Re	eserve - Point Center - Loan	(25,015		
	460 · Inv	vestments - Point Center Fin - Other	25,015		
Total	Other Ass	ets			
DTAL AS	SETS		4,513,853		

Desert Healthcare Foundation Balance Sheet As of October 31, 2017

		Oct 31, 17
ABILITIES &	EQUITY	
Liabilities		
Currer	It Liabilities	
Ac	counts Payable	
	1000 · Accounts Payable	206,000
	1052 · Account payable-DHCD Exp Alloc	132,710
То	tal Accounts Payable	338,710
Ot	her Current Liabilities	
	2190 · Current - Grants payable	1,749,768
То	tal Other Current Liabilities	1,749,249
Total C	Current Liabilities	2,087,959
Long 1	ferm Liabilities	
21	86 · Grants payable	200,000
Total Liabi	lities	2,287,959
Equity		
3900 ·	Retained Earnings	2,295,496
Net Inc	ome	(69,603
Total Equi	by I	2,225,893
TAL LIABIL	ITIES & EQUITY	4,513,853

Desert Healthcare Foundation Deposit Detail October 2017

Туре	Date	Name	Amount
Deposit	10/31/2017		14,470
		American Society of Composers	(3,575)
		Riverside County Treasurer	(10,895)
TOTAL			(14,470)
		Total Deposit	14,470

Desert Healthcare Foundation Check Register As of October 31, 2017

Туре	Date	Num	Name	Amount
146 · Checking - Pacif	ic Premier 6718			
Bill Pmt -Check	10/11/2017	10780	Alejandro Espinoza	(902)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/11/2017	10781	City of Palm Springs	(21)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/11/2017	10782	CVAG - City of Coachella - Homelessness Initiative	(103,000)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/11/2017	10783	Desert Regional Medical Ctr Aux-Void	0
Bill Pmt -Check	10/11/2017	10784	Mary Pannoni	(58)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/11/2017	10785	CVAG - CVAG - Homelessness Initiative	(103,000)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/12/2017	10786	Desert Regional Medical Ctr Aux	(2,000)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/12/2017	10787	Desert Regional Medical Ctr Aux	(6,000)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/18/2017	10788	Deiter Crawford.	(72)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/18/2017	10789	Desert Recreation District	(18,573)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/18/2017	10790	Marjorie L. Holland	(362)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/18/2017	10791	Palm Springs Chamber of Commerce	(70)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/18/2017	10792	TOP Shop	(207)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/30/2017	10793	Cardmember Services	(385)
Bill Pmt -Check	10/30/2017	10794	Ronald A Stewart	(540)
TOTAL				(235,190)

			Desert Hea	Ithcare Found	Jation
			Details for cre	edit card Expe	nditures
		C	credit card purchases - Se		
Number of cre	edit cards hel	d by Foundatio	n personnel -1		
Credit Card Li	mit - \$5,000				
Credit Card H	olders:				
Chris Chri	stensen - Chi	ef Executive O	fficer		
Routine types	of charges:				
		nembership, Su	pplies for Projects, Prog	rams, etc.	
	St	atement			
	Month	Total	Expense		
Year	Charged	Charges	Туре	Amount	Purpose
Chris' Stateme	not:				
Sins Statem	ent.				
2017		\$ 28,53	Foundation		
			2190	\$ 260.34	RSS wristbands
			5110	\$ 25.00	Desert AIDS Walk registration
			5110		Desert AIDS Walk registration
			5110		Desert AIDS Walk registration
			5110		Desert AIDS Walk registration
			5110		Desert AIDS Walk registration
				\$ 385.34	

	DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUND	ATION										
	OUTSTANDING GRANTS AND GRANT PAY	MENT SCHEDUL	.E									
	October 31, 2017											
	TWELVE MONTHS ENDED JUNE	30, 2018										
	6/30/2017 New Grants 10/31/2017											
A/C 2190 and A/C 2186-Long terr	n			Open	Current Yr	Т	otal Paid		Open			
Grant ID Nos.	Name		В	BALANCE	2017-2018	J	uly-June		BALANCE			
	California Health Portal 2014 and 2015 - \$200K		\$	42,451		\$	2,416	\$	40,035			
DHCD BOD 1/28/14	DHCD BOD - approved \$50K for Collective fund		\$	27,757		\$	-	\$	27,757	Shared Fac	cility	
	Cal Endowment - \$130K for collective fund		\$	10,000		\$	-	\$	10,000		cility	
	Mayor's Check recorded - \$100K HP		\$	100,000		\$	-	\$	100,000			
	Mayor's Check recorded - \$100K HP		\$	100,000		\$	-	\$	100,000	100 HP		
5	Mayor's Check recorded - \$100K RSS		\$	97,296		\$	28,846	\$	68,450			
	Desert Highland Gateway Community Health & Wellness		\$	39,788		\$	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$	15,527	DHG		
	West Valley Homelessness Initiative - Matching Grant				\$ 2,000,000	\$	412,000		1,588,000	Homelessi	ness	
TOTAL GRANTS			\$	417,292	\$ 2,000,000	\$	467,524	\$	1,949,768			
												57
Summary: As of 10/31/17			\$	217,292			; 2190	\$	1,749,768			
Health Portal:	\$ 240,035		\$	200,000			2186	\$	200,000			of
Swim	\$ 68,450		\$	417,292		Tot	al	\$	1,949,768			4
West Valley Homelessness Initiativ	\$ 1,588,000		\$	-		Diff		\$	-			
Shared facility use:												Page
Cal Endow and School Dist	\$ 37,757											g
DHG:	\$ 15,527											0
Total	\$ 1,949,768											
Amts available/remaining for Grant/Programs - FY 2017-18: FY17 Grant Budget												
Amount budgeted 2017-2018					\$ 300,000							
Amount granted through Octobe	er 31, 2017:	\$ (2,000,000)	Ī								1	
Mini Grants:		\$ -	1									
Net adj - Grants not used:												
Balance available for Grants/Pro	grams	\$ (1,700,000)										

DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION FINANCE, ADMINISTRATION, REAL ESTATE AND LEGAL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES November 14, 2017

A Meeting of the Finance, Administration, Real Estate and Legal Committee of the Desert Healthcare Foundation was held in the Desert Healthcare District Conference Room, 2nd Floor, Palm Springs, CA.

Attendance:

<u>Members</u> Mark Matthews, Chairman/Treasurer Dr. Les Zendle, Director <u>Absent</u> Alejandro Espinoza, Program Officer and Outreach Director Arthur Shorr, Community Member Sid Rubenstein, Community Member

<u>Staff</u>

Herb Schultz, CEO Chris Christensen, CFO Donna Craig, Senior Program Officer Mary Pannoni, Accounting/Admin Support Andrea S. Hayles, Clerk to the Board

Community Members

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 3:45 p.m. by Chair Matthews.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was moved and seconded (Director Zendle, Chair Matthews) to approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Submitted for approval:

1. Minutes – October 10, 2017

It was moved and seconded (Director Zendle, Chair Matthews) to approve the minutes of October 10, 2017. Motion passed unanimously.

CEO REPORT

Herb K. Schultz, CEO, explained the Walter L. and Patricia Ann Rootness 1995 Revocable Trust that provided the District with \$100,000 representing a preliminary distribution pursuant to the provisions of the Trust.

FINANCIAL REPORTS

- Financial Statements
 The October 2017 financial statements were reviewed.
- 2. Balance Sheet Allocation Schedule October 2017 The allocation schedule was reviewed.
- Deposits The October 2017 deposit detail was reviewed.
- 4. Check Register The October 2017 check register was reviewed.
- 5. General Grants Schedule The general grants schedule was reviewed.

It was moved and seconded (Director Zendle, Chair Matthews) to approve the October 2017 Foundation Financial Reports and forward to the Board for approval. Motion passed unanimously.

OTHER MATTERS

1. Boys & Girls Club – Ready Set Swim Jr – Service Agreement \$6,000 – Action

Chris Christensen, CFO, explained the service agreement for the Boys & Girls Club for funding that is reimbursable by the County.

It was moved and seconded (Director Zendle, Chairman Matthews) to approve the Boys & Girls Club – Ready Set Swim Jr – Service Agreement for \$6,000 and forward to the Board for approval.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 3:57 p.m.

ATTEST: ____

Mark Matthews, Chairman Finance and Administration Committee/Treasurer Desert Healthcare District Board of Director



Date: November 28, 2017

To: Board of Directors

Subject: Ready Set Swim Jr. Program: Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs

<u>Staff Recommendation</u>: Approval of the Ready, Set, Swim Jr. contract and budget for the Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs

Background:

The Ready, Set, Swim Jr. (RSS Jr.) program provides free swimming lessons to children 18 months to 5 years old, and water safety workshops to their parents/caretakers. The program kicked off in Spring of 2017 in the cities of Palm Springs and Desert Hot Springs, and in the cities of Indio, Coachella and Mecca with great success.

Discussion:

First 5 Riverside approached the Desert Healthcare Foundation (DHCF) with a program extension and additional program funds in June 2017 to continue to provide swimming lessons and water safety workshops throughout the Coachella Valley until June 2018. The new program funds now stand at \$220,658.00 for the new contract period.

The Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs, which is the DHCF's subcontractor for the RSS Jr. program, has been key in providing supporting staff and the pool facilities for program implementation.

• At the F&A Committee meeting on November 14th, the Committee recommended forwarding to the Board for full approval.

Fiscal Impact:

The fiscal impact of the RSS Jr. contract and budget for the Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs will be \$6,000.00. Funds for the RSS Jr. program are provided by the contract with First 5 Riverside.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

This Independent Contractor Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by **DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION**, a California healthcare district organized and operating pursuant to Health & Safety Code section 3200 et seq. (the "Agency") and **BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF PALM SPRINGS** ("Contractor")

RECITALS

A. The Agency is engaged in the business of providing funding for programs/projects that advance health and wellness to District/Foundation residents.

B. The Contractor provides recreational services to more than 380,000 residents throughout the Greater Coachella Valley. In addition, the Contractor creates and delivers quality programs, services and classes; and, facilitates leisure opportunities through partnerships that encourage residents to engage in healthy lifestyles and wellness activities

C. The Agency desires to utilize Contractor's services for specific projects on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Engagement and Scope of Services.

(a) **Engagement:** The Agency hereby retains the services of Contractor and Contractor hereby agrees to provide the services described in Exhibit A, and such other services as requested in writing from time to time by an authorized representative of the Agency, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(b) **Extent of Services**: Contractor shall be available to render services as described in Exhibit A or as requested by the Agency. The Agency expects the initial assignment described in Exhibit A (scheduled agreed to and provided by the Agency), but nothing in this Agreement shall entitle Contractor to provide or obligate the Agency to request any specific minimum or maximum number of hours or days of services. Contractor shall be free to provide services to other clients during the term of this Agreement provided this does not impair Contractor's ability to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement or create a conflict of interest with the Agency.

(c) **Skill and Ability:** All services performed by Contractor shall reflect first class workmanship and attention to detail. Contractor represents and warrants that it has the requisite skill, ability, training, licenses, and other qualifications necessary or

customarily required to perform such services in accordance with the best practices in the industry and all applicable laws and customs.

(d) **Accounting:** Upon request by the Agency, Contractor shall provide the Agency with an accurate accounting of all services performed or in progress under this Agreement.

2. Years of Engagement and Termination

Contractor's engagement with the Agency shall commence when contract is approved by the Agency's Board of Directors around **November 1, 2016** and shall continue until **June 30, 2018** or until the services requested by the Agency are completed, but either party may terminate Contractor's engagement (a) immediately in the event of a breach of this Agreement or other just cause, or (b) at any time without a breach or just cause upon ten (10) days written notice.

3. Compensation.

(a) Fees: \$6,000.00

(b) Expenses:

(c) **No Other Benefits:** The Agency shall not be responsible for and Contractor shall not be entitled to the payment of any other compensation or other amounts to the Contractor. Under no circumstances shall Contractor be eligible for or entitled to any of the compensation or benefits that the Agency may provide to its employees, either as required by law or pursuant to Agency policy or practice, including but not limited to bonus and incentive compensation; overtime pay or meal and rest period premiums; vacation, sick leave, holiday, or other paid time off; retirement, profit sharing or 401k; medical, dental, vision, life, disability, or other insurance; severance pay; stock options, stock grants or other equity participation; or workers compensation, unemployment insurance, or disability insurance. Contractor specifically acknowledges that is principals shall not be eligible for unemployment insurance even if this Agreement is terminated without cause.

(d) **Taxes:** The Agency shall report all compensation paid to Contractor under this Agreement on Form 1099. Contractor shall be solely responsible for all taxes, penalties, or interest due with respect to all such compensation, and shall defend and indemnify the Agency for any such taxes, penalties or interest.

(e) **Termination.** Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, the Agency's only obligation shall be to pay the compensation and expenses owing under this Agreement for authorized services actually rendered by Contractor prior to the date of termination.

4. Independent Contractor Status.

(a) In performing any and all services to the Agency, Contractor shall function strictly as an independent contractor and shall not be deemed an employee, partner, joint venture, agent, or principal of the Agency. Contractor shall have no authority to bind Agency, enter into contractors, or authorize expenditures without the prior written authorization of the Agency. Contractor shall be solely responsible for providing any benefits as required by law, contract, or policy to any employees of the Contractors. The Agency is only responsible for compensating for benefits as outlined in Exhibit B.

(b) Contractor shall be solely responsible for all obligations imposed by law or contract as the employer of any personnel to whom Contractor delegates the performance of services under this Agreement, including but not limited to compliance with all state and federal laws concerning payroll and recordkeeping, wage and hour, employee benefits, safety and health, equal employment opportunity and unlawful harassment or discrimination, or termination of employment. Contractor shall defend and indemnify the Agency and its officers, directors, employees, and agents from any claim or liability asserted against the Agency by any personnel of Contractor arising from or relating to the performance of services under this Agreement.

(c) To the extent Contractor and its personnel interact with employees of the Agency or perform services at the Agency or its customers' locations, Contractor and its personnel shall comply with all rules and policies of the Agency that apply generally to all business visitors, concerning safety and health, equal employment, unlawful harassment, substance abuse and personal conduct.

5. Confidential Information.

(a) At all times during and after the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall hold in strictest confidence any information which is not legally available to the public as public information as the Agency is a public agency.

(b) Additionally, as a public agency, all Contractor information, data, communications, contracts, fees provided to the Agency under this Agreement are available to the public and not classified as confidential.

6. Compliance with Law:

Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations in performing services under this Agreement, including but not limited to those concerning food safety, ethical marketing practices, and consumer protection.

7. Indemnity:

Contractor shall defend and indemnify the Agency and its officer, directors, employees, agents, successors, and assigns from all claim and liabilities (including attorneys' fees and costs) that arise from or are related to any breach of this Agreement by Contractor or any negligent or wrongful act or omission of Contractor and its personnel, including but not limited to claims for death or personal injury involving the Contractor's use or operation of any motor vehicle or equipment.

8. Insurance:

At all times during and for a reasonable period of time after the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and maintain adequate general liability insurance covering all aspects of the services rendered under this Agreement, including but no limited to adequate automotive liability insurance covering any use or operation of any motor vehicle. Contractor shall be solely responsible for procuring and maintaining any insurance required or customarily provided to Contractor's employees, including but not limited to group medical, life, disability, accidental death and dismemberment, workers compensation and unemployment insurance.

9. Returning Agency Documents and Transition of Business:

Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, or upon request by the Agency at any time, Contractor shall return unconditionally to the Agency all documents and files (including originals and copies, whether on paper or electronic), equipment supplies, and all other property of any kind that belongs to the Agency or came into Contractor's possession in the course of performing services under this Agreement. Upon request, Contract shall also present a written accounting of all services performed and business transacted under this Agreement. Contractor shall cooperate in good faith with the Agency to assure an orderly transition of business under this Agreement following termination.

10. Miscellaneous.

(a) **Notices.** Any notice required under this Agreement may be personally delivered or sent by facsimile, pdf, email or first class mail to the following addresses:

(i) If to the Agency:

Desert Healthcare District 1140 North Indian Canyon Drive Palm Springs, CA 92262 Attn: Herb K. Schultz, CEO (ii) If to the Contractor: Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs 450 S. Sunrise Palm Springs, CA 92262 Attn: Andrea Madrigal, Executive Director (b) **No Waiver.** If any party fails to object to a breach of this Agreement, that party shall not be precluded from objecting to any future breach.

(c) **Governing Law.** This Agreement has been made and entered into in the State of California and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

(d) **Severability.** If any provision of this Agreement is declared void for any reason, all other provisions shall remain in effect.

(e) **Captions.** The various captions of this Agreement are for reference only and shall not be considered or referred to in resolving questions or interpretation of this Agreement.

(f) **Attorneys' Fees.** If any legal action is necessary to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover its costs and attorneys' fees.

(g) **Assignment.** Contractor may not assign his rights, obligations or duties under this Agreement without the express written consent of the Agency. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon any successor or assign of the Agency.

Signature Page:

Agency:

By:	
Its: Herb K. Schultz, CEO	

Contractor:

By:_____ Its: Andrea Madrigal, Executive Director

Date:	

EXHIBIT A

SERVICES

Period beginning approximately September 1, 2017 through June 1, 2018

- 1. By June 1, 2018, the Contractor shall provide adequate staffing for all Ready, Set, Swim Jr. classes in Palm Springs.
- 2. By June 1, 2018, the Contractor will provide logistical support, specific to the Ready, Set, Swim Jr. program.
- 3. By June 1, 2018, the Contractor will ensure the swimming facility is available and maintained for the Ready, Set, Swim Jr. program.
- 4. By June 1, 2018 the Contractor program staff will participate in all meetings and/or trainings, specific to the RSS Jr. program.

EXHIBIT B

SUMMARY OF COSTS

2017/18 Ready Set Swim Budget

	\$ F	per hour	# of hours	Total
Staffing Cost	\$	34	75	\$ 2,550.00
Data Entry	\$	15	25	\$ 375.00
Pool Equipment and Supplies				\$ 3075.00

Total Amount \$6,000.00

RIVERSIDE COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION CONTRACT INVESTMENT OF FUNDS FIRST AMENDMENT AND RESTATED CONTRACT

CONTRACTOR: DESERT HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION

RCCFC Award: 17122 OP

Address: 1140 N. Indian Canyon Drive, Palm Springs, CA 92262

WHEREAS, the Riverside County Children and Families Commission, also known as "First 5 Riverside" ("Commission") and **Desert Healthcare Foundation** ("Contractor") entered into an Investment of Funds Contract, RCCFC Award no. **17122 OP** (the "Contract") for the provision of services.

Now, therefore, the parties agree to amend the Contract as follows:

A. The first page of the Contract shall be amended to reflect the maximum reimbursable amounts, funding periods, and compensation as listed below:

Revised Contract Term:	11/01/16 - 06/30/18
Maximum Reimbursable Amount:	\$220,658.00

- B. Attachment A-1. Scope of Work for November 1, 2016 June 30, 2018 is added as outlined in Attachment A-1, and attached hereto. Attachment A is deleted in its entirety.
- C. Attachment B-1. Budget for November 1, 2016 June 30, 2018 is added as outlined in Attachment B-1, and attached hereto. Attachment B is deleted in its entirety.
- D. Attachment C-1. Payment Provisions for November 1, 2016 June 30, 2018 is added as outlined in Attachment C-1, and attached hereto.
- E. Attachment D. Comprehensive Tobacco Control Policy attached hereto.

//			
11			.)
11		2017	
11			7 3 171
11		<u></u>	1/4
11	INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK	-1	2
11		PM	
11			ter D
11		0	307
11			1
11			
11			

1

F. All changes to this Contract referenced herein shall supersede the comparable sections within the Contract. All other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized representative to execute this Amendment and Restated Contract.

CONTRACTOR:	Riverside County Children and Families
By: Signature	By: Tammi Graham, Executive Director
By: <u>Herb K. Shutt</u>	Attest: By: Market Market Stephens, Commission Secretary
Date:	Date: <u>\$/9/17</u>

j,

RIVERSIDE COUNTY CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

.

1

Contents

1

.

1.	NOTICES SOURCE AND SCOPE OF CONTRACT	5
2.	SOURCE AND SCOPE OF CONTRACT	5
3.	DEFINITIONS	5
4.	TERM	6
5.	COMPLIANCE, DISALLOWANCE, WITHHOLDING	6
6.	TERMINATION	6
7.	TERMINATION REQUIREMENT OF SUPPLEMENTING PROGRAM	7
8.	DATA MANAGEMENT	7
9.	SCOPE OF WORK (SOW)	8
10.	REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS	8
11.	FISCAL AND PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS	9
12.	REIMBURSEMENT OF FUNDS TO THE COMMISSION	10
13.	RCCFC FISCAL REQUIREMENTS	. 10
	A. Budget Adjustments	
	B. Budget Revisions	
	C. Amendments	
	D. Cost Allocation	
	E. Overhead/Indirect Costs	
	F. Revenues Received	
	G. Pavroll Taxes 12	
14.	CONTRACTOR AUDIT REQUIREMENTS	.12
15.	INVENTORIABLE EQUIPMENT	12
16.	REVERSION OF ASSETS	
17.	TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY	. 14
18.	CONDUCT OF BUSINESS	. 14
19.	RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE.	15
20.	PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS	. 15
21.	INSPECTIONS, PROGRAM MONITORING AND CONTRACT ADMINISTRATIVE	16
22.	GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE	16
23.	CONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTS FOR WORK OR SERVICES	16
24.	PUBLICITY AND ATTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS	17
25.	PROHIBITION OF POLITICAL/RELIGIOUS ACTIVITY	. 18
26.	WORK PRODUCT	. 19
27.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	. 19
28.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	. 19
29.	HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION	19
30.	INSURANCE	
31.	ASSIGNMENT	22
32.	ALTERATION AND/OR AMENDMENT	23
33.	CONFLICT OF INTEREST	23
34.	WAIVER AND SEVERABILITY	23
35.	DISALLOWANCE	23
36.	OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS	23
37.	ENTIRE CONTRACT	23
38.	NONEXCLUSIVE CONTRACT	24
39.	CERTIFICATION OF AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS CONTRACT	24
40.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	24
41.	CONFLICTS IN INTERPRETATION	24

Followed by:

ATTACHMENT A: SCOPE OF WORK ATTACHMENT B: BUDGET ATTACHMENT C: PAYMENT PROVISIONS ATTACHMENT D: COMPREHENSIVE TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY Terms and Conditions

1. NOTICES

All correspondence and notices required or contemplated by this Contract shall be delivered to the respective parties at the addresses set forth below and are deemed submitted one day after their deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

COMMISSION:

Tammi Graham, Executive Director First 5 Riverside 585 Technology Court Riverside, CA 92507 CONTRACTOR:

Chris Christensen, CFO/COO Desert Healthcare Foundation 1140 N. Indian Canyon Drive Palm Springs, CA 92262

Or to such other addresses as the parties may hereafter designate in writing.

2. SOURCE AND SCOPE OF CONTRACT

- A. This Contract award is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are available to the Commission from Proposition 10 tax dollars for the total term of the Contract. It is mutually agreed that if the State does not appropriate sufficient Proposition 10 funds, this Contract shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds.
- B. In addition, this Contract is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by the State of California, which may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this Contract in any manner.
- C. This Contract award is designated for an investment of funds to provide Health, Education or Child Care services in accordance with the current Commission Strategic Plan. Services are to be provided to benefit children 0 through 5years of age (may also be abbreviated as "0-5") who reside in Riverside County.

3. **DEFINITIONS**

The following are terminology included within the Terms and Conditions of the Contract are defined by the Riverside County Children & Families Commission as stated below:

Commission: The Riverside County Children & Families Commission, an assembly of Commissioners, appointed by the Riverside County Board of Supervisors and responsible for establishing policy and directing Proposition 10 funds at the county level.

Contractor: The government or other legal entity to which a contract is awarded and which shall be accountable to the Commission for the use of funds provided.

County: The Riverside County Children & Families Commission, the County of Riverside, its agencies, districts, special districts and departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives.

Data Management System: An online data management system used to collect and analyze client demographics, services and target accomplishments.

Executive Director: The designated lead director of the Commission or his or her designee.

Fiscal Year: The Commission's fiscal year is July 1 through June 30.

Performance Target: The specific results that a CONTRACTOR will commit to achieve. CONTRACTOR will be contractually responsible to achieve these specific targets as outlined in Scope of Work (SOW), (See Attachment A).

Performance Target Accomplishment Schedule: The specific timeline that a CONTRACTOR will commit to adhere to, (See Attachment A).

Probationary Status: CONTRACTOR is given notice of non-compliance and, after failure to correct deficiencies, has been placed in a status that may require additional monitoring, announced and unannounced visits, additional reporting by CONTRACTOR, an evaluation by Commission staff and a report to the Commission inclusive of recommendations regarding the disposition of the Contract.

Scope of Work (SOW): A documented qualitative and quantitative description of the project's deliverables (i.e. what the CONTRACTOR is funded to do), (See Attachment A).

4. <u>TERM</u>

The term of this Contract shall be from <u>November 1, 2016</u> through <u>June 30, 2018</u> unless sooner terminated by the provisions herein by either party. Funds shall not be automatically renewed by the Commission upon or after the term of the Contract except by formal amendment approved by the Commission.

5. COMPLIANCE, DISALLOWANCE, WITHHOLDING

If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any conditions contained within this Contract, the Commission may place the CONTRACTOR in a probationary status, temporarily withhold payments until the deficiency is corrected, deny funds for all or part of the cost of activity not in compliance, and/or request repayment to the Commission if any disallowance is rendered after audit findings. Written notification of non-compliance will be sent to the identified contact person and the CONTRACTOR's executive director or other lead staff authorized by the CONTRACTOR's governing board or ownership within twenty (20) working days.

6. TERMINATION

A. By Commission: The Commission may, by written notice to CONTRACTOR terminate this Contract in whole or in part at any time for the reasons as set forth below. Upon receipt of notice, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise).

1. Termination for cause:

a. Due to Default or Breach of Contract. Upon default by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Contract or material breach of any of its provisions which include but are not limited to; change in status or delegation, assignment or alteration of the services outlined in Attachment A of this Contract, the Commission may immediately terminate this Contract by written notice, which shall be effective upon receipt by CONTRACTOR, unless Commission provides CONTRACTOR the opportunity to cure breach within twenty (20) working days of receipt of notice, and CONTRACTOR does so to Commission's satisfaction.

- b. Due to Health and Safety Concerns of Clients. The Commission may immediately terminate this Contract, at the sole discretion of the Commission when the CONTRACTOR has been accused and found to be in violation of any county, state, or federal law and/or regulation related to the health and safety of clients. Contract may also be immediately terminated at the sole discretion of the Commission if the CONTRACTOR fails to provide for the health and safety of clients served under this Contract where the health and safety of clients are placed at risk by CONTRACTOR.
- c. Due to Non-Appropriation. Termination may occur if no funds or insufficient funds are available for payments. After this Contract is terminated under these provisions, the Commission shall have no obligation to make further payments. Termination shall be effective immediately upon written notification of the decrease or elimination of funds.
- d. Due to Non-Compliance. Termination may occur if CONTRACTOR fails to provide the Commission with any reports, data and/or information as required in this Contract. CONTRACTOR may be placed in a probationary status until compliance with the terms of the Contract has been met. CONTRACTOR will be given thirty (30) calendar days to cure the deficiency. If compliance is not met within the thirty (30) calendar days, the Commission may move forward with termination of the Contract.
- B. By CONTRACTOR: CONTRACTOR may terminate this Contract in whole or in part upon thirty (30) calendar days' written notice to the Commission.

7. REQUIREMENT OF SUPPLEMENTING PROGRAM

Funds received pursuant to this Contract shall not be used to supplant any program of the CONTRACTOR. Proposition 10 Funds shall ONLY be used to supplement a CONTRACTOR's program. The Commission endorses the California Children and Families Commission's interpretation of supplanting: The definition of "supplement" is to add to or augment something that currently exists, while "supplant" is defined as taking the place of something currently in existence. As defined in Health and Safety Code sections 130100 et seq. (the Children and Families Act), all monies raised pursuant to the Act shall be appropriated and expended by CONTRACTOR only to supplement existing levels of services. The Act specifically prohibits appropriation and expenditure of funds to supplant state or local general fund money for any purpose. Further, expenditures are prohibited for use to fund any existing levels of service.

8. DATA MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTOR agrees to participate in a comprehensive, countywide, internet-based evaluation and management process as defined by the Commission. Participation shall include, but is not limited to, monthly input of program and financial data, submission of quarterly and annual Program Progress Reports, utilization of the Commission developed reporting systems and Administrative Review formats and required training to familiarize and implement the resultsbased accountability framework.

The Commission continues to refine its evaluative processes that will assist the Commission, its CONTRACTORS and the community to successfully increase and measure the impact of the Children and Families Act in Riverside County. Where appropriate, CONTRACTOR agrees to participate in the ongoing development of these evaluative processes. Specific areas may include, but are not limited to, the development of outcomes for programmatic performance, standards for service delivery and assessment tools.

9. SCOPE OF WORK (SOW)

- A. CONTRACTOR will be required to submit and adhere to a Scope of Work (SOW) approved by the Commission as Attachment A to this Contract. The SOW will accurately reflect measurable results of services provided through Proposition 10 funding. The SOW will provide a qualitative and quantitative description of the program(s) objectives to be achieved in connection with Proposition 10 funding.
- B. SOW revisions that are considered relatively minor adjustments that do not affect the overall deliverables of this Contract shall be accepted for consideration through March 31 of each fiscal year. Requests for these types of SOW adjustments must be submitted to the Commission office in writing or via e-mail and shall not be implemented by CONTRACTOR prior to receipt of written approval from authorized Commission personnel. Upon approval, CONTRACTOR will receive either written or e-mail verification from the Commission Executive Director (or designee).

SOW revisions that are considered significant changes to program performance targets and affect the overall deliverables of this Contract include the following: changes that result in the type or number of customers served, new staff positions or major staff changes, or significant changes in the Performance Targets. Requests for these types of SOW changes shall be accepted for consideration through March 31 of each fiscal year. SOW revisions shall be submitted to the Commission Executive Director (or designee), via the Commission's contract analyst assigned to the CONTRACTOR. The Commission Executive Director (or designee) will respond to the proposed request for SOW revisions within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt at the Commission office. Final approval of any proposed revisions to the SOW shall require the written approval of the Commission Executive Director (or designee). All changes will be incorporated into the Contract and shall become effective on the date of written approval from the Commission Executive Director and/or the Commission.

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to make every possible effort to obtain voluntary consent using the Commission Consent Form for any customer entered into the data management system. CONTRACTOR also agrees to maintain the original signed Consent Form on file for the Commission to review as necessary. Each customer is to receive a copy of the signed Consent Form.

10. REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS

Payment will not be provided for services performed and/or expenditures accrued prior to the full execution of this Contract unless previously authorized by Commission action. Reimbursement of costs shall be made upon CONTRACTOR's satisfactory performance, based upon the Scope of Work (Attachment A) and methodology contained in Attachment A as determined by the Commission. The Commission shall allocate the funds to CONTRACTOR as follows:

- A. All funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be expended by CONTRACTOR in accordance with the budget, as set forth in Attachment B hereto.
- B. All funds will be distributed as detailed in the Payment Provisions, as set forth in Attachment C hereto.

11. FISCAL AND PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. Fiscal Reporting

Fiscal expenditures are required to be input into the Data Management System on a monthly basis and input must be completed by the 20th of the month following contract performance. CONTRACTOR is required to report expenditures on a monthly basis and apply accruals at year end. Accruals show costs for services that have occurred but have not yet been paid. If the reporting due date falls on a weekend or County, State or nationally recognized holiday, the due date will be on the following business day. Any changes that occur with expenditures must be reported to Commission staff and adjusted within the data management system before the end of the Quarter following the expense occurrence. Example: Changes to expenditures in the first quarter of performance must be adjusted and reconciled before the end of the 2nd quarter (December 30, as reported in the January 30 report). A change in CONTRACTOR staff, or other difficulties, does not absolve the CONTRACTOR from this monthly fiscal reporting responsibility.

In rare and justifiable circumstances, an extension may be requested by the CONTRACTOR. Such requests are to be submitted in writing prior to the due date and shall be directed through the Commission's contract specialist assigned to the CONTRACTOR.

If applicable, CONTRACTOR shall provide copies of the claim report submitted monthly for Medi-Cal and/or any other state or federal reimbursements. In addition, the CONTRACTOR will provide the subsequent revenue reports that will reconcile the claim reports.

Costs may be allowed and reviewed for reimbursement up to the time of the Final Fiscal Expenditure Report, which is due <u>July 20</u>. All reimbursement costs not submitted by July 20 will be disallowed.

Commission staff will send notification verifying payment amount, payment reduction or payment withheld. Changes in the mailing address or remit to address must be submitted in writing on the CONTRACTOR letterhead and signed by an authorized representative.

B. Program Reporting

Program data must be entered on a monthly basis and input must be completed by the 20th of the following month. If the reporting due date falls on a weekend or holiday, the due date will be on the following business day. Additionally, Quarterly Program Progress Reports must be submitted to the Commission within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of the quarter. Any changes that occur with program data input must be reported to Commission staff and adjusted within the data management system before the end of the Quarter following the change. Example: Changes to program data in the first quarter must be adjusted and reconciled before the end of the 2nd quarter (December 30, as reported in the January 30 report). A change in contract staff, or other difficulties, does not absolve the CONTRACTOR from this monthly program data input and quarterly Program reporting responsibility.

In rare and justifiable circumstances, an extension may be requested by the CONTRACTOR. Such requests are to be submitted in writing prior to the due date and shall be directed through the Commission's program specialist assigned to the CONTRACTOR.

Quarterly Program Reporting due dates for each Contract period:

- QUARTER 1 ending September 30: Report Due October 30
- QUARTER 2 ending December 31: Report Due January 30

- QUARTER 3 ending March 31: Report Due April 30
- QUARTER 4 ending June 30: Report Due July 30 (Final Cumulative Program Progress Report)

If the due date falls on a weekend or County, State or nationally recognized holiday, the due date will be on the following business day. The first quarterly report is due **October 31, 2018**.

12. <u>REIMBURSEMENT OF FUNDS TO THE COMMISSION</u>

If CONTRACTOR has been overpaid in the previous fiscal year, the Commission will, in instances where the Contract is renewed, reduce subsequent payment(s) to recover the amount overpaid.

Notwithstanding any other provision herein, CONTRACTOR agrees to reimburse, in full, any and all funds received from the Commission, upon request of the Commission, where such funds as determined by the Commission are not, or have not been utilized by CONTRACTOR for their purpose as intended by the Commission. The terms and conditions of reimbursement shall be at the sole discretion of the Commission. This provision is not terminated upon termination of this Contract.

13. RCCFC FISCAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Budget Adjustments

A budget adjustment is the transfer of funds from one approved line item to another approved line item. Individual transfers shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the approved destination category subtotal amount and in no case will cumulative transfers over the course of a fiscal year period exceed more than ten percent (10%) of the total current fiscal year funding amount without written approval of the Executive Director, or designee. Written justification from the CONTRACTOR is required in the Program Progress Report submitted for the quarter in which the transfer is made and written notification of the transfer to the Commission's contract analyst from the CONTRACTOR is required during the month in which the transfer is made. Budget adjustments having a potential effect on the CONTRACTOR'S ability to comply with the SOW require prior approval from Commission to discover or object to any unsatisfactory quarterly fiscal reports prior to payment will not constitute a waiver of the Commission's right to require CONTRACTOR to correct such quarterly reports. Budget Adjustments will be considered until June 30 of each fiscal year.

B. Budget Revisions

Budget revisions are requests to transfer more than ten percent (10%) of the total Contract amount and/or the addition of line items that were not previously approved. The Executive Director, or designee, will accept proposed budget revisions along with written justification from CONTRACTOR through March 31 of each fiscal year. Any unused funding from each fiscal year within the Contract Term may be considered for "roll over" into the next fiscal year for allowable and preapproved budget revisions, contingent on approval of the Commission Executive Director (or designee). The Commission Executive Director (or designee), will respond to budget revisions within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt at the Commission office.

C. Amendments

Necessity for budget amendments to this Contract will be determined by the Commission Executive Director (or designee), and may include, but are not limited to contract increases or decreases and significant changes to the Scope of Work (SOW). All budget amendments to the Contract shall require formal approval of the Commission Executive Director acting on behalf of the Commission, as provided herein, before they are effective. Major budget amendments, as determined by the Commission Executive Director, in consultation with County legal counsel, will require formal approval of the Commission. Contract budget amendments will be considered until March 31 of each fiscal year.

D. Cost Allocation

CONTRACTOR shall have or establish a cost allocation plan to identify prorated costs shared by multiple funding sources, including Proposition 10 funds. CONTRACTOR shall identify any other funding sources and organizations whose cooperation/participation is necessary to ensure the success of the project. CONTRACTOR's Cost Allocation Plan must be approved by CONTRACTOR's appropriate governing body and submitted with the executed Contract.

A Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) is defined as a written summarization that documents the methods and procedures that the CONTRACTOR will use to allocate costs between two or more programs or funding sources. The goal is to ensure that each program or funding source bears its fair share, and only its fair share, of the total costs. The CONTRACTOR must have a method of identifying and distributing program costs that are comprehensive, well documented, and defensible under the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

A written CAP is required if any of the conditions below are met:

- a. Funded staff members share their time between a First 5 Commission funded program and one or more other grant funded programs.
- b. A single-funded staff member shares their time between two or more First 5 Commission funded programs.
- c. The same facilities and/or resources are utilized by more than one funded program.

E. Overhead/Indirect Costs

- 1. Overhead/Indirect costs are defined as costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than one cost objective and cannot be readily identified with a particular final cost objective. These costs do not provide a measurable, direct benefit to a particular program or activity, unlike direct costs. Indirect cost may include salaries, benefits and operating expenses. Capital expenses and subcontractor costs are <u>excluded</u>.
- 2. Indirect cost percentage rate included in the Budget, Attachment B to this Contact, shall not exceed ten percent (10%) calculated against the salaries, benefits and operating expenses only.
- Indirect costs shall be based on the CONTRACTOR's official governing board approved Cost Allocation Plan. State/federal approved rates in excess of the approve ten percent (10%) indirect cost rate percentage will be reviewed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

4. A pass through is defined as those instances where the CONTRACTOR forwards funds obtained from the Commission to a subcontractor and the Commission maintains no relationship or responsibility for the performance of the subcontractor. Proposition 10 funds shall not be used in a manner that will cause payment for indirect costs associated with the CONTRACTOR's funded program more than once. The Commission will not pay for subcontractor indirect costs as part of the CONTRACTOR's budget.

F. Revenues Received

Any and all revenue received by the CONTRACTOR (except funds received from the Commission) to operate the program funded pursuant to this Contract shall be reported as revenue received within the monthly fiscal report. All such revenues shall be used to fully compensate expenses within the program funded and/or to provide additional services within the program funded pursuant to this Contract. Any unused revenues shall be deducted from Contract reimbursement.

G. Payroll Taxes

The Commission shall not be directly responsible for the payment of any taxes on the CONTRACTOR's behalf. In the event that the Commission is required to do so by state, federal or local taxing agencies, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly reimburse the Commission for the full value of such paid taxes plus interest and penalty, if any. These taxes shall include, but are not limited to the following: FICA (Social Security), unemployment insurance contributions, income tax, disability insurance and workers' compensation insurance.

14. CONTRACTOR AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

- A. All CONTRACTORS are required to have an annual financial audit. Each CONTRACTOR shall provide a copy of their annual audited financial statements to the Commission, covering the fiscal year that funds are received for services provided pursuant to this Contract. The audited financial statements will cover the CONTRACTOR's fiscal year and will include a statement of internal controls over financial reporting. All audits shall be performed by a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) who possesses a valid license to practice within the State of California.
- B. Audited financial statements are to be submitted to the Executive Director, or designee, within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days after the close of the CONTRACTOR's fiscal year for every year covered under this Contract. If the audited financial statements are not received on or before the required due date and an extension has not been granted, the audited financial statements shall be considered delinquent and immediate corrective action is required. If the CONTRACTOR fails to produce or submit acceptable audited financial statements, the CONTRACTOR fails to produce or submit acceptable audited financial statements, the CONTRACTOR shall be liable for all Commission costs incurred in obtaining an independent audit. The cost of the audit will be applied against the Contract encumbered amount, thereby reducing the amount of funding available to the program.

15. INVENTORIABLE EQUIPMENT

A. Inventoriable equipment includes equipment/fixed assets with a unit cost of one thousand dollars (\$1000) or more or if the aggregate cost of integral components required to fully operate the assembled equipment (i.e. computer processing unit, keyboard, monitor) total one thousand dollars (\$1,000) or more. Inventoriable equipment derived from approved

purchases funded by Proposition 10 funds shall be maintained by the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall use such capitalized equipment only for the purposes for which they were granted for children 0 through 5 years of age.

- B. The CONTRACTOR shall inventory and report any and all equipment purchases meeting this criterion, on the Commission Inventory Record Form. This record must be submitted within forty-five (45) calendar days of purchase to the Commission's contract analyst assigned to the CONTRACTOR. Applicable receipts must be maintained by the CONTRACTOR to validate expenditures and shall be submitted as invoice back-up documentation and uploaded to Persimmony (the data management system), and made available as requested during the Commission staff site visits. It is understood that the CONTRACTOR is liable for any/all liability and damages resulting from the use and/or misuse of equipment purchased with Proposition 10 funds. Equipment shall not be used for personal use by the CONTRACTOR, and/or their employees, agents, subcontractors and/or collaborating partners.
- C. Any remaining non-inventoriable items, material and supplies with a value of less than one thousand dollars (\$1000) will be used for children ages 0 through 5 years of age by a program serving this population, or returned to the Commission. If Contractor is no longer serving this population, all remaining items will be returned to First 5 Riverside within thirty (30) calendar days of the program ceasing operations.

16. <u>REVERSION OF ASSETS</u>

Real or Personal Property Assets. Any real property or moveable or immovable personal property under CONTRACTOR's control or ownership that was acquired or improved in whole or in part with Proposition 10 funds disbursed under this Contract, or under any previous Contract between the Commission and CONTRACTOR, where the original cost exceeded one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) shall either be: (1) used by CONTRACTOR for the services described in the Scope of Work (Attachment A) for a period of five (5) years after termination or expiration of this Contract, unless a different period is specified in the Scope of Work (Attachment A); or (2) disposed of and proceeds paid to the Commission in a manner that results in the Commission being reimbursed in the amount of the current fair market value (assuming depreciation in accordance with customary business practices) of the real or personal property less any portion of the current value attributable to CONTRACTOR's out of pocket expenditures using non-commission funds for acquisition of, or improvement to, such real or personal property and less any direct and reasonable costs of disposition.

- A. In furtherance of the foregoing, if the Commission selects continued use of the capital asset, the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that it will confirm in writing that it will continue to use the capital asset for purposes congruent with the intent of the this Contract. This provision shall survive the termination or expiration of this Contract and shall be actionable at law or in equity by the Commission against CONTRACTOR and its successors in interest.
- B. In the event the Commission selects disposition of the subject real or personal property, the CONTRACTOR shall exercise due diligence to dispose of such property in conformity with applicable laws and regulations and in accordance with customary business practices. The net proceeds of such disposition shall be disbursed directly to and be payable to the Commission upon the close of the applicable disposition transaction, such as close of escrow for the sale of real property, transfer of a motor vehicle "Certificate of Title" in accordance with applicable California Vehicle Code requirements, or completion of sale of personal property by bill of sale in accordance with Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) requirements.

17. TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY

CONTRACTOR shall abide by the Comprehensive Tobacco Control Policy, incorporated herein by reference, and as may be amended from time to time. CONTRACTOR shall have tobacco education and cessation materials visibly available and accessible to clients participating and to staff funded from the Commission funded activities. The Comprehensive Tobacco Control Policy is set forth as Attachment D hereto.

18. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all references listed below. Failure to comply may place the CONTRACTOR in a Probationary Status or result in a Termination of Contract.

- A. CONTRACTOR shall be in compliance, and shall remain in compliance with all applicable state and/or federal laws, regulations or requirements during the term of the Contract.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall conduct its business, pursuant to this Contract, in compliance with all applicable state, and/or federal laws, regulations or requirements.
- C. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and shall maintain all applicable business and/or professional licenses, insurances, and/or accreditations, in good standing, which are required under the laws of the State of California or the federal government at all times while performing services under this Contract.
- D. CONTRACTOR shall notify the Commission Executive Director (or designee) verbally and in writing their intent to cease operations of the facility or program within sixty (60) calendar days, but no less than thirty (30) calendar days, of the event.
- E. CONTRACTOR shall notify the Commission Executive Director (or designee) in writing within seventy-two (72) hours of a change of key personnel funded under this Contract. Key personnel is defined as individuals who have a direct bearing on the outcome of the project, who have substantive responsibility for developing or achieving the scope or objectives of the project, and who possess the reputation, knowledge, or skills on which the work of the project is based. This includes, but is not limited to the Director, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Program Manager, or Project Lead.
- F. CONTRACTOR shall notify the Commission Executive Director (or designee) verbally and in writing of any condition that could interfere with CONTRACTOR's ability to perform required services and/or meet material Contract requirements within thirty (30) calendar days of the learning of such a condition.
- G. Agencies that are governed by a regulatory or licensing entity shall advise and forward to the Commission Executive Director any and all documentation of regulatory/licensing violations, findings and responses to such violations and/or findings within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt of notice of violation from the governing entity. Agencies shall promptly submit to Commission Executive Director a copy of the response sent to the governing entity.
- H. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the Commission upon the intent to file or filing of any action of bankruptcy.
- I. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the Commission upon the commencement of any litigation, whether CONTRACTOR is the plaintiff or defendant, where such litigation may

interfere with the ability of CONTRACTOR to perform its duties under this Contract, and where the Commission is not a party to such litigation.

J. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the Commission upon the commencement of any investigation, and/or activity by a regulatory agency against CONTRACTOR, which may interfere with the ability of CONTRACTOR to perform its duties under this Contract.

19. RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE

- A. The CONTRACTOR shall make reports to the Commission in the required format and containing information as may be required by the Commission.
- B. The CONTRACTOR shall also provide additional reports or information if required by the State or the local Commission and was not reasonably anticipated at the time the Contract was entered into.
- C. CONTRACTOR shall input all data required on a monthly basis by the 20th day of the month following the end of the reporting period <u>and</u> submit quarterly reports within thirty (30) calendar days following the end of the quarter, and at the end of the term of the Contract. This requirement includes:
 - 1. All the monthly data necessary to generate demographic, service utilization, results and aggregate activity reports;
 - 2. Submission of the Program Progress Report on a quarterly basis;
- D. CONTRACTOR shall retain such reports, and all records associated with this Contract for at least five (5) years following the close of the fiscal year in which this Contract is in effect. This obligation is not terminated upon termination of this Contract, whether by recessions or otherwise. CONTRACTOR agrees to require any subcontractors to retain all records associated with the Contract for the same time period.
- E. Accounting information and transactions shall be recorded and reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
- F. Where medical records, and/or client records are generated under this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall safeguard the confidentiality of the records in accordance with all state and federal laws, and all regulations promulgated hereunder, including the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), Public Law 104-91, enacted August 21, 1996, and the laws and regulations promulgated subsequent thereto.
- G. Each CONTRACTOR must maintain a written customer confidentiality policy and maintain a written protocol to ensure CONTRACTOR staff is aware of and abide by said policy.

20. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that information, communications, and documents given by or to the Commission and meetings involving the Commission members, staff, finance or advisory committee members may be subject to applicable law on public disclosures and/or public meetings. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the Commission in order that it may fully comply with the requirements of such laws and regulations.

21. INSPECTIONS, PROGRAM MONITORING AND CONTRACT ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW BY COMMISSION

- A. Commission representatives shall review and inspect the CONTRACTOR through mandatory periodic Administrative Review visits for compliance with the terms of this Contract. During the Administrative Review visits, CONTRACTOR representatives from both fiscal and program areas must be present. All books, financial records and program records including verification of target(s) and other documents relating to the performance of this Contract must be open to inspection, examination, or copying during normal business hours by the Commission staff or duly authorized representatives from the state or federal government. Records shall be made available at reasonable times at CONTRACTOR's place of business or at such other mutually agreeable location in the County of Riverside, State of California.
- B. Upon completion of the Program Monitoring and Administrative Review visit, the CONTRACTOR will be mailed a report summarizing the results of the Administrative Review visit within forty-five (45) calendar days of the visit. The CONTRACTOR may be required to respond to concerns or requests as specified in the Administrative Review report within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt.

22. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE

- A. This Contract is entered into under the provisions of Health and Safety Code section 130100 et seq., as may be amended from time to time and any other applicable law.
- B. This Contract, and its construction and interpretation as to validity, performance and breach shall be construed under the laws of the State of California. In the event any provision in this Contract is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.
- C. The provision of the Government Claims Act (Government Code Section 900 et seq.) must be followed first for any disputes under this Contract.
- D. All actions and proceedings arising in connection with this Contract shall be tried and litigated exclusively in state or federal (if permitted by law and a party elects to file an action in federal court) courts located in the County of Riverside, State of California.

23. CONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTS FOR WORK OR SERVICES

- A. The Commission holds CONTRACTOR solely responsible for the performance of all duties and obligations under this Contract. CONTRACTOR agrees and understands that Commission does not enter into, or assume any legal relationship with any subcontractor of CONTRACTOR for performance under this Contract. CONTRACTOR agrees to remedy any and all breaches of any contracts with any subcontractor, and further agrees that CONTRACTOR may not look to the Commission for any payment, liability, or assistance in the remedy of any actual or alleged breach.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall identify any other organization whose cooperation/participation is necessary to ensure the success of the project and what specific roles these key partners will play. Any and all subcontractor(s) shall conform to all requirements of the Commission and any Contract between the CONTRACTOR and the Commission.

- C. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any subcontractor who:
 - 1. Is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a federal department or agency;
 - 2. Has within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for the commission of fraud, or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust status or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - 3. Is presently indicated or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the paragraph above; and
 - 4. within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract, has had one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.
- D. The Contractor shall be as fully responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as for the acts or omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor.
- E. The Contractor shall insert appropriate clauses in all subcontracts to bind subcontractors to the terms and conditions of this contract insofar as they are applicable to the work of subcontractors.
- F. Nothing contained in this contract shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the County of Riverside, its agencies, districts, special districts and departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives.

24. PUBLICITY AND ATTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Upon signing this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall publicize their funded program and partnership with the Commission by creating a press release to be distributed to local media outlets. The press release shall be sent to First 5 Riverside for review and approval within fourteen (14) calendar days of signing of Contract. No later than five (5) calendar days after the press release is reviewed and approved by First 5 Riverside, the press release shall be distributed to local media outlets. Should guidance be needed on this requirement, please contact Commission public information specialist.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall include the following acknowledgment of the Commission and Proposition 10 funding in all materials produced for the purpose of public education and outreach related to Commission funded programs. These materials include but are not limited to the following: brochures, workbooks, flyers, circulars, posters, games, television, radio and print advertising, public service announcements and video news releases, calendar/event listings, presentations, telephone hold messages, outdoor advertising and vehicles. The wording of the First 5 Riverside attribution shall be one of the following:

"Made possible by funding from First 5 Riverside" "Funded by First 5 Riverside" "Funded by First 5 Riverside - the Riverside County Children & Families Commission"

"Hecho posible por medio de fondos de Primeros 5 Riverside" "Financiado por Primeros 5 Riverside"

For events, conferences or programs with multiple funders, one of the following attributions shall be used:

"Funded in part by First 5 Riverside"

"Funded in part by First 5 Riverside - the Riverside County Children & Families Commission"

"Made possible by funding from First 5 Riverside"

"Financiado parcialmente por Primeros 5 Riverside"

"Financiado parcialmente por Primeros 5 Riverside - Comisión de Niños y Familias del Condado de Riverside"

When space is limited (buttons, pencils, pens, etc.), attribution may be omitted. However, CONTRACTORS shall contact the Commission's public information specialist to determine an appropriate method of providing attribution to the public regarding the funding source for such items.

- C. The approved First 5 Riverside logo (graphic) shall be used on materials specific to the Commission funded program. CONTRACTOR shall use the approved First 5 Riverside logo (graphic) on public education and outreach materials in accordance with the First 5 Riverside graphics attribution standard as posted on the Commission public website (www.rccfc.org).
- D. CONTRACTOR shall provide the Commission staff/public information specialist a copy of all public information/relations products (such as flyers, newsletters, posters, etc.) as soon as possible but not later than fourteen (14) calendar days prior to submitting to print. News releases should be submitted as soon as possible but not later than seven (7) calendar days before public release is scheduled.
- E. The Commission's public information specialist shall provide guidance on procedures for logo usage and printed public relations material in accordance with the Commission policies. Policies will be available on the Commission public website (<u>www.rccfc.org</u>) and/or the First 5 Riverside data management system.

25. PROHIBITION OF POLITICAL/RELIGIOUS ACTIVITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall not require client participation in political or religious activities in order to receive services for programs funded by the Commission. Furthermore, Proposition 10 funds shall be used only for the purposes specified in this Contract and in any attachments, hereto. No Proposition 10 funds shall be used for any political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for political office. No Proposition 10 funds shall be used for purposes of religious worship, instruction or proselytizing.

26. WORK PRODUCT

- A. The Commission shall be the owner of the following items incidental to this Contract upon production, whether or not completed: all data collected, all documents of any type whatsoever, and any material necessary for the practical use of the data and/or documents from the time of collection and/or production whether or not performance under this Contract is completed or terminated prior to completion. CONTRACTOR shall not release any materials under this section except after prior written approval of the Commission.
- B. Material produced in whole or in part under this Contract shall not be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country except as determined at the sole discretion of the Commission. The Commission will have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and use in whole or in part, any reports, data, documents or other materials prepared under this Contract.

27. NON-DISCRIMINATION

This Contract hereby incorporates by reference the provisions of Title 2, CCR. Section 8107 et seq., as may be amended from time to time. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the provisions of Title 2, CCR, Section 8107 et seq. and further agrees to include this Non-Discrimination clause in any and all subcontracts to perform services under this Contract.

28. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and that no relationship of employer-employee exists between the CONTRACTOR and the Commission. The CONTRACTOR, nor CONTRACTOR's officers, agents, employees or subcontractors, shall not be entitled to any Commission paid employee benefits, including Workers' Compensation.

29. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, the County of Riverside, its agencies, districts, special districts and departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives (individually and collectively hereinafter referred to as Indemnitees or COUNTY) from any and all liability whatsoever, including wrongful death, based or asserted upon any services of CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Contract, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, or death or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from the performance of CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees including, but not limited to, attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards, the Indemnitees in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.

With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their own choice and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of COUNTY; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes CONTRACTOR'S indemnification to Indemnitees as set forth herein.

CONTRACTOR's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when CONTRACTOR has provided to COUNTY the appropriate form of dismissal relieving COUNTY from any liability for the action or claim involved.

The specified insurance limits required in this Contract shall in no way limit or circumscribe CONTRACTOR's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees herein from third party claims.

In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code Section 2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code 2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR from indemnifying the Indemnitees to the fullest extent allowed by law.

- A. If CONTRACTOR is a public entity, as defined by applicable law, the Commission and CONTRACTOR, to the extent that liability may be imposed on the Commission by the provisions of Government Code Section 895.2, shall be liable for their own acts or omissions, including all claims, liabilities, injuries, suits, and demands and expenses of all kinds which may result or arise out of any alleged malfeasance or neglect, caused or alleged to have been caused by either the Commission of any act or responsibility of either party under this Contract. In the event that a claim is made against both the Commission and CONTRACTOR, both parties shall cooperate in the defense of said claim and to cause their insurers to do likewise.
- B. CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify the Commission for all federal/state withholding or state retirement payments, which the Commission may be required to make by the federal or state government as a result of this Contract. If for any reason, CONTRACTOR is determined not to be an independent contractor to the Commission in carrying out the terms of the Contract, such indemnification shall be paid in full to the Commission upon sixty (60) calendar days written notice to CONTRACTOR if a federal and/or state determination is made that such payment is required.

30. INSURANCE

Without limiting or diminishing the CONTRACTOR'S obligation to indemnify or hold the County harmless, CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain or cause to be maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverage's during the term of this Contract.

Workers' Compensation:

If the CONTRACTOR has employees as defined by the State of California, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of the County of Riverside, and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

Commercial General Liability:

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury, and cross liability coverage, covering claims which may arise from or out of CONTRACTOR's performance of its obligations hereunder. Policy shall name the County of Riverside, its agencies, districts, special districts, and departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, employees, elected or appointed officials, agents or

representatives as Additional Insureds. Policy's limit of liability shall not be less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Contract or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit.

Vehicle Liability:

If vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Contract, then CONTRACTOR shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used in an amount not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Contract or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the County of Riverside, its agencies, districts, special districts, and departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, employees, elected or appointed officials, agents or representatives as Additional Insureds.

Professional Liability Insurance:

CONTRACTOR shall maintain Professional Liability Insurance providing coverage for the CONTRACTOR's performance of work included within this Contract, with a limit of liability of not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars (\$2,000,000) annual aggregate. If CONTRACTOR's Professional Liability Insurance is written on a claims made basis rather than an occurrence basis, such insurance shall continue through the term of this Contract and CONTRACTOR shall purchase at his sole expense either 1) an Extended Reporting Endorsement (also known as Tail Coverage); or 2) Prior Dates Coverage from new insurer with a retroactive date back to the date of, or prior to, the inception of this Contract; or 3) demonstrate through Certificates of Insurance that CONTRACTOR has Maintained continuous coverage with the same or original insurer. Coverage provided under items; 1), 2) or 3) will continue for a period of five (5) years beyond the termination of this Contract.

General Insurance Provisions - All lines:

- 1. Any insurance carrier providing insurance coverage hereunder shall be admitted to the State of California and have an A M BEST rating of not less than A: VIII (A:8) unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the County risk manager. If the County's risk manager waives a requirement or a particular insurer such waiver is only valid for that specific insurer and only for one (1) policy term.
- 2. The CONTRACTOR's insurance carrier(s) must declare its insurance self-insured retentions. If such self-insured retentions exceed five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000) per occurrence such retentions shall have the prior written consent of the County risk manager before the commencement of operations under this Contract. Upon notification of self-insured retention unacceptable to the County, and at the election of the Country's risk manager, CONTRACTOR's carriers shall either; 1) reduce or eliminate such self-insured retention as respects this Contract with the County, or 2) procure a bond which guarantees payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense costs and expenses.
- 3. CONTRACTOR shall cause CONTRACTOR's insurance carrier(s) to furnish the County of Riverside with either 1) a properly executed original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of Endorsements effecting coverage as required herein, and 2) if requested to do so orally or in writing by the County risk manager, provide original Certified copies of policies including all Endorsements and all attachments thereto, showing such insurance is in full force and effect. Further, said Certificate(s) and policies of insurance shall contain the covenant of the insurance carrier(s) that thirty (30) working

days' written notice shall be given to the County of Riverside prior to any material modification, cancellation, expiration or reduction in coverage of such insurance. In the event of a material modification, cancellation, expiration, or reduction in coverage, this Contract shall terminate forthwith, unless the County of Riverside receives, prior to such effective date, another properly executed original Certificate of Insurance and original copies of endorsements or certified original policies, including all endorsements and attachments thereto evidencing coverage's set forth herein and the insurance required herein is in full force and effect. CONTRACTOR shall not commence operations until the COUNTY has been furnished original Certificate (s) of Insurance and certified original copies of endorsements and if requested, certified original policies of insurance including all endorsements and any and all other attachments as required in this Section. An individual authorized by the insurance carrier to do so on its behalf shall sign the original endorsements for each policy and the Certificate of Insurance.

- 4. It is understood and agreed to by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be construed as primary insurance, and the County's insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retention's or self-insured programs shall not be construed as contributory.
- 5. If, during the term of this Contract or any extension thereof, there is a material change in the scope of services; or, there is a material change in the equipment to be used in the performance of the scope of work which will add additional exposures (such as the use of aircraft, watercraft, cranes, etc.); or, the term of this Contract, including any extensions thereof, exceeds five (5) years the County reserves the right to adjust the types of insurance required under this Contract and the monetary limits of liability for the insurance coverage's currently required herein, if; in the County risk manager's reasonable judgment, the amount or type of insurance carried by the CONTRACTOR has become inadequate.
- 6. CONTRACTOR shall pass down the insurance obligations contained herein to all tiers of subcontractors working under this Contract.
- 7. The insurance requirements contained in this Contract may be met with a program(s) of self-insurance acceptable to the County.
- 8. CONTRACTOR agrees to notify County of any claim by a third party or any incident or event that may give rise to a claim arising from the performance of this Contract.

Adjustment and/or Waiver of Requirements:

The Commission Executive Director (or designee), in consultation with the Commission's risk manager, may adjust the insurance requirements set forth herein as deemed necessary for the Contract, and/or may waive insurance requirements where not applicable to the Contract. Insurance endorsements shall be submitted to the Commission upon submission of the fully executed Contract, but no later than when contract work commences.

31. ASSIGNMENT

This Contract shall not be assigned by CONTRACTOR, either in whole or in part, without prior written consent of the Commission, as approved and authorized by formal action of the Commission.

32. ALTERATION AND/OR AMENDMENT

No alteration, amendment, or variation of the terms of this Contract shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. Oral understandings or Contract not incorporated herein shall not be binding on any of the parties hereto. As provided herein, the Commission Executive Director, acting on behalf of the Commission, may alter or revise this Contract on behalf of the Commission. Material alterations and/or amendments, as determined by the Commission Executive Director in consultation with County legal counsel, will require formal approval of the Commission. Except as provided herein, the parties expressly recognized that individual Commission members, advisory committee members, or staff to the Commission is without authorization to either change or waive any material requirements of this Contract without formal action of the Commission.

33. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall have no economic interest, and shall not acquire any economic interest, direct or indirect, which will conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this Contract.

34. WAIVER AND SEVERABILITY

Any waiver by the Commission of any breach of any one (1) or more terms of this Contract shall not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or other breach of the same term of any other term herein. In the event, any provision in this Contract is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

35. DISALLOWANCE

In the event CONTRACTOR receives payment for services under this Contract, which is later disallowed for nonconformance with the terms and conditions herein, CONTRACTOR shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to the Commission upon request. The Commission retains the option to offset the amount disallowed from any payment due to the CONTRACTOR under this Contract, or under any other Contract, or Contract between CONTRACTOR and the Commission.

36. OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS

Upon the Contract approval by the Commission, one (1) completed set of this document will be sent to the CONTRACTOR. Such copy shall be the officially approved Contract for the conduct of the approved project.

37. ENTIRE CONTRACT

This Contract, inclusive of all attachments and exhibits, constitutes the entire Contract between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and all prior or contemporaneous Contract of any kind of nature relating to the same shall be deemed to be merged herein. Any modifications to the terms of this Contract shall be by the provisions of the section entitled "alteration and/or amendment" herein.

38. NONEXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

CONTRACTOR understands that this is not an exclusive Contract and that the Commission shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into Contracts with others providing the same or similar services as those provided by CONTRACTOR as the Commission desires, and at the sole discretion of the Commission.

39. CERTIFICATION OF AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS CONTRACT

CONTRACTOR certifies that the individual signing herein has authority to execute this Contract on behalf of CONTRACTOR, and may legally bind CONTRACTOR to the terms and conditions of this Contract, and any attachments hereto.

40. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply with all County, State, and Federal law now in force or which may hereafter be in force with regard to this Contract. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or the admission of CONTRACTOR in any action against CONTRACTOR, whether the Commission be a party thereto or not, that CONTRACTOR has violated any such ordinance or statute, shall be conclusive of that fact as between CONTRACTOR and the Commission.

41. CONFLICTS IN INTERPRETATION

In the event of conflict in interpretation by the parties of the provisions contained in the numbered sections of this Contract and the provisions contained in the Attachments hereto, the provisions of the attachments in the Contract shall prevail over those in numbered sections.

ATTACHMENT A-1: SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor: Desert Healthcare Foundation (DHF) Strategy: Drowning Prevention Courses and Swim Lessons Contract: 17122 OP Program/Budget Cycle: November 1, 2016 to June 30, 2018

In Riverside County, drowning is the number one cause of injury-related death for children 1 to 4 years of age. Over the past five years, there have been a total of 462 drowning related incidents, of which 107 resulted in death by drowning. Understanding that 25% of these drownings have been amongst young children less than five years of age, 61% of near-drowning also occur within this same age group. This is partly due to the lack of swimming experience among children. The disproportionate impact on young children and the potential of preventative interventions illustrates the importance of addressing the problem of drowning in Riverside County.

Children under the age of 1 year are most likely to drown in a bathtub, while children ages 1–4 years were most likely to drown in a swimming pool, such that swimming pools accounted for more than 50% of all unintentional drowning deaths. In addition, for every child who dies from drowning, another five receive emergency department care for nonfatal submersion injuries.

Program Description

The Ready, Set, Swim, Jr. program will be implemented to increase water safety awareness amongst parents/caretakers, and provide children with water safety skills and tools, such as swimming lessons and interactive presentations of the risks associated with different bodies of water, specifically pools. The target audience of the RSS Jr. program will be families with children ages 0 through 5 years old living in the cities of Desert Hot Springs, Palm Springs, Cathedral City, Indio, Coachella and Mecca. The Desert Healthcare Foundation will serve an estimated **750** parents/caregivers and **600** children at locations throughout eastern Riverside County.

The facilities used for the swimming lessons will be:

- Wardman Pool in the City of Desert Hot Springs
- The Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs Pool
- Pawley Pool in the City of Indio
- Bagdouma Pool in the City of Coachella
- Mecca Community Pool in the City of Mecca

Swimming Lessons

The RSS Jr. program will target children ages 0 through 5 years of age by conducting communitybased outreach at schools, daycare providers and other locations to identify and enroll participants into swimming lessons using the American Red Cross' *Learn-to-Swim* swimming curriculum taught by the Desert Recreation District (DRD) swim instructors/lifeguards. Two different courses of the swimming lessons will be offered at the referenced pool locations throughout the Coachella Valley.

Parent and Child Aquatics: Aimed at children 6 months through 3 years of age. Parents and children participate in several guided practice sessions that help kids learn elementary swimming skills, including:

- Learning how to enter and exit the water in a safe manner
- Feeling comfortable in the water
- Exploring submerging to the mouth, nose, eyes and completely
- Exploring buoyancy on the front and back position
- Changing position in the water
- Experience wearing a U.S Coast Guard approved life jacket in the water

Prerequisites: The participating children must be at least 6 months old and parent/caretaker must participate in all lessons.

Pre-School Aquatics: Aimed at children 4 through 5 years of age. Children will learn water safety, survival skills and fundamental swimming concepts in a safe and fun environment. Skills are ageappropriate, allowing children to achieve success on a regular basis, while having fun. Children will participate in guided practice sessions that help them learn basic swimming skills, including, but not limited to:

- Understanding basic water safety rules
- Entering and exiting the water safely using the ladder steps or side
- Increased comfort with being fully submerged and retrieval of submerged objects
- Water adjustment skills
- Breathing and floating techniques
- Supported and unsupported front and back float
- Front and back kicks with support
- Alternating arm action with simultaneous use of legs

Prerequisites: Child must be at least 4 years old to enroll.

Both swimming courses will be taught in an 8-lesson format consisting of 45-minutes of instructional time in the pool taught by the DRD swim instructors. A pre and post evaluation tool will be utilized to measure the changes in skill levels achieved by each participating child. Sign-in sheets will be used to track attendance and participation.

Water Safety Workshops

The second method of increasing awareness about water safety will target parents of children 0 through 5 years of age, who are at risk of drowning and/or are participating in the RSS Jr. program. These workshops will focus on water safety measures a parent/caretaker can take to prevent a drowning or near-drowning accident from happening.

Two 45-minute educational workshops on water safety will be provided in Spanish and English to the parents/caretakers of children participating in the RSS Jr. program or any community member interested in participating, who has a child at risk of drowning. The workshops will be held at the same facilities and areas where the swimming lessons will be held.

Targets: Aggregate

- 1. By June 30, 2018, DHF will conduct a minimum of **41** swimming cohorts consisting of 8lessons each for children 0 through 5 years of age.
- 2. By June 30, 2018, a minimum of **196** children, ages 6 months through 3 years of age, will graduate from the Parent and Child/Ready, Set, Swim Jr. program.
- 3. By June 30, 2018, a minimum of **404** children, ages 4 through 5 years of age, will graduate from the Preschool Aquatics/Ready, Set, Swim Jr. program.
- 4. By June 30, 2018, 80% (or 480) children will demonstrate an increase in water safety skills acquired.
- 5. By June 30, 2018, DHF will conduct a minimum of 41 water safety workshops (in English and Spanish) to parents/caregivers with children 0 through 5 years of age participating in the Ready, Set, Swim, Jr. program and other community members with children at risk of drowning.
- 6. By June 30, 2018, **750** parents/caregivers with children 0 through 5 years of age participating in the Ready, Set Swim, Jr, program and other community members with children at risk of drowning will participate in the water safety workshops.
- 7. By June 30, 2018, **80% (or 600)** parents/caregivers will demonstrate an increase in knowledge regarding water safety as evidenced by a pre/post-test.
- 8. By June 30, 2018, DHF will document the number of outreach activities participated in to educate parents/caregivers on drowning prevention.

Page 51 of 57

ATTACHMENT B-1

14	FIRST 5 Agency Name: Desert Healthcare Foundation						
	RIVERSIDE Contract Number:				17122 OP		
	Program Name :	:			Ready, Set, Swim Jr.	Program	
	F5R Funds (Base	Amount) FY 20	16-2018:			\$220,658	
	List other funding source(s) that a				List Other Program Fund(s) below:		
	Tota	I Funding from Al	00000000	\$220,658			
	First 5 Ri	verside Progr	am Bud	lget: No	vember 1, 2016 - Juni	e 30, 2018	
	· · · ·		PE	RSONN	EL		
	FTE Funded by				(4)	(11)	(0)
		Total Annual Salary for		5R nded	(A) 8 Mos.	(8) 12 Mos.	(C) Total Program
		Position at Full			(Nov 2016 - June 2017)	(July 2017 - June 2018)	(A+B=C)
	Personnel Title	Time Equivalent	16/17	17/18			
1	Program Director	\$87,984	0.16	0.24	\$14,078	\$21,263	\$35,3
2	Programmatic Assistant	\$45,760	0.09	0.14	\$4,322	\$6,483	\$10,84
3	Accountant	\$100,000	0.06	0.09	\$6,112	\$9,167	\$15,2
		SUBTOT	AL PERS	ONNEL:	\$24,512	\$36,913	\$61,42
				BENEFITS	; 		
			Percentage paid by		(A) 8 Mos.	(B)	(C)
	Employee Benefits	Total Annual	funding source			12 Mos.	Total Program
		Benefits	FSR	Other	(Nov 2016 - June 2017)	(July 2017 - June 2018)	(A+B=C)
1	Program Director	\$29,915	0.16	0.24	\$4,820	\$7,229	\$12.0
2	Programmatic Assistant	\$15,558	0.09	0.14	\$1,470	\$2,204	\$3,67
3	Accountant	\$34,000	0.06	0.09	\$2,078	\$3,117	\$5,15
		SUBT	OTAL BE	NEFITS:	\$8,368	\$12,550	\$20,91
	OF	PERATIONAL E	XPENDIT	URES (M/	ATERIALS AND SUPPLIE	ES)	
1	Office Supplies/equipment at \$1000 or less				\$1,500	\$1,000	\$2.50
2	Postage & Printing				\$1,000	\$667	\$1.66
3	Advertising / Outreach Marketing				\$3,250	\$2,500	\$5,7
5	Program Materials and Incentives				\$3,500	\$1,000	\$4,50
8	Insurance				50	\$0	
12	Travel (sirfare, mileage, meals, hotel)				\$2,000	\$1,034	\$3,0
19	(1) Other-Uniforms/Program T-shirts				\$450	\$200	\$6
20	(2) Other- Pool Equipment				\$3,000	\$700	\$3,7
	SUBTOT	AL MATERIALS	AND SU	PPLIES:	\$14,700	\$7,101	\$21,80
			SUBC	ONTRAC	TORS		
1	Desert Recreation District				\$93,810	\$6,290	\$100,11
2	Boys & Girls Club of Paim Springs				\$5,500	\$500	\$6,00
3							
4 5							
	e	UBTOTAL SUB	CONTRA	CTOPS	\$99.310	\$6,790	\$106,10
	3	ODIVIAL 308					\$ 100,10
	Indirect Percentage to be Paid by F5R		INDI	RECT CO	515	I	
1	(maximum 10%):				\$4,758	\$5,656	\$10,4
-		SUBTOTAL IN	DIRECT	COSTS:	\$4,758	\$5,656	\$10,41
_							

ATTACHMENT B-1

	BUDGET NA	RRATIVE/JUSTIFICATION FOR USE OF FUNDS					
Agency Name: De		ert Healthcare Foundation					
Contract Number: Program Name :		-					
		Set, Swim Jr. Program					
FIISL 3 K	ogram Budget: November 1, 2016 - June 30, 2018						
(Use the space below to provide a brief narrative statement to justify EACH line item within your program budget.)							
		PERSONNEL AND BENEFITS					
Program Director	\$47,390	The Program Director will administer the day-to-day operations of the RSS Jr. program, including the marketing and outreach for the program; manage the program budget and serve as a Ilaison between First 5 Riverside and the Desert Healthcare Foundation. Project salary of \$21,263 is calculated by a .24 FTE for 12 months, based on a \$87,984 annual salary. Benefits of \$7,229 are based on .24 FTE at 24% for 12 months based on a annual salary of \$87,984. Amount includes 5% personnel Increase for 8 months, effective November 2016 The Programmatic Assistant will assist in the data entry, outreach, water safety workshops and					
Programmatic Assistant	\$14,479	enrollment of program participants. Project salary of \$6,483 is calculated by .14 FTE for 12 months, based on a \$45,760 annual salary. Benefits of \$2,204 are based on .14 FTE at 14% for 12 months based on an annual salary of \$45,760. Amount includes 5% personnel increase for 8 months, effective November 2016					
Accountant	\$20,474	The Accountant will manage the fiscal responsibilities of the program, including the preparation of all invoices and supporting documentation. Project salary of \$9,167 is calculated by a .09 FTE for 12 months, based on a \$100,000 annual salary. Benefits of \$3,117 are based on .09 FTE at .09% for 12 months, based on an annual salary of \$100,000. Amount includes 5% personnel increase for 8 months, effective November 2016					
SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL/BENEFITS:	\$82,343						
	DEDATIONA						
Office Supplies/equipment at \$1000 or	PERATIONA	L EXPENDITURES (MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES) General office supplies, such as pens, pencils, markers, will be purchased to support program					
less	\$2,500	activities, based on \$125. a month for 20 months.					
Postage & Printing	\$1,667	Printing of marketing materials, flyers, program applications to support program activities, based on \$83.35 a month for 20 months.					
Advertising / Outreach Marketing	\$5,750	Outreach and marketing of the RSS Jr. program will include promotional ads in social media outlets (Facebook) and traditional marketing methods, such as newspapers and radio ads to inform potential program participants of class dates, times and locations. The cost of these marketing efforts will be; Facebook Sponsored Ads: 75 days x \$50/day= \$3,750 and newspaper ads (English and Spanish) 100 days x \$20/day=\$2,000. Advertising / Outreach Marketing Materials will include First 5 Riverside logo as defined in contract.					
Program Materials and Incentives	\$4,500	Program materials and incentives for participants will include: program t-shirts for the participating children (450 @ \$8.00 ea); bumper stickers for the parents (450 @ \$2.00 ea). Program materials and incentives will include First 5 Riverside logo as defined in contract.					
Insurance	\$0	Insurance covered by subcontractors					
Travel (airfare, mileage, meals, hotel)	\$3,034	Local mileage reimbursement for staff set at maximum established IRS rate per mile. This will include driving to and from pool facilities, outreach activites, presentations and required meetings for all staff participating in the program.					
(1) Other-Uniforms/Program T-shirts (2) Other- Pool Equipment	\$650 \$3,700	Program uniforms/t-shirts will be provided for the program staff to ensure program branding during outreach, swimming classes and water safety workshops. Based on \$41.70 each. T-shirts will Include First 5 Riverside logo as defined in contract.					
SUBTOTAL OPERATIONAL:	\$21,801	Pool equipment, such as kickboards, goggles, sunscreen, towels and other swimming aids.					
		SUBCONTRACTORS					
Desert Recreation District	\$100,100	Desert Recreation District (DRD) will recruit, hire and train 10 swimming instructors/ lifeguards for the RSS Jr program. The DRD will also make arrangements for pool facility rentals in Desert Hot Springs, Palm Springs, Indio, Coachelta and Mecca.					
Boys & Girls Club of Palm Springs	\$6,000	The Boys and Girls Club of Palm Springs' pool will serve as a program site. The BGC of PS will provide staffing to maintain pool facilities open after-hours for the program implementation.					
SUBTOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS:	\$106,100						
		INDIRECT COSTS PAID BY F5R					
INDIRECT COSTS PAID BY F5R:	\$10,414	Indirect costs are those costs of general management that are agency-wide. General management costs consist of expenditures for administrative activities necessary for the general operation of the agency (e.g. accounting, budgeting, payroll preparation, personnel management, purchasing, centralized data processing.) The standardized method for distributing these indirect costs to programs is referred to as the indirect cost rate.					
TOTAL FIRST 5 F	· · ·	\$220,658					

10 - F

ATTACHMENT C-1: PAYMENT PROVISIONS

A. FISCAL

The maximum reimbursable amount over the life of this Contract is **\$220,658** as awarded by the Riverside County Children and Families Commission (RCCFC), also known as First 5 Riverside, provided pursuant to Proposition 10.

CONTRACT PERIOD: 11/01/16 through 06/30/18

- 1. Method, Time and Schedule Conditions of Payment
 - a. RCCFC shall reimburse CONTRACTOR no more than monthly, in arrears, upon submission by CONTRACTOR of an invoice input into the First 5 Riverside designated Data Management System for actual expenses incurred, and supporting documentation under the terms of this Contract so long as all of the following conditions have been met:
 - 1. The Contract has been approved by the Commission;
 - 2. The Contract has been fully executed by all parties;
 - 3. All applicable licenses in order to comply with the terms of the Scope of Work (Attachment A-1) are current and valid; and,
 - 4. Commission staff has reviewed and approved Cost Allocation Plan (if applicable).
 - b. Reimbursement will be paid for the provision of services as outlined in Attachment A-1 and at a rate not to exceed provision provided in Attachment B-1.
 - c. The Contractor will be paid the actual amount of each monthly invoice. If required supporting documentation is not provided, First 5 Riverside may delay payment until the information is received by First 5 Riverside.
 - d. As of the final disbursement for FY 16/17, any unspent funds will automatically rollover to the same line item identified in the budget for FY 17/18. The total contract amount will not exceed the amount approved by the Commission and identified in paragraph one of this attachment.

ATTACHMENT D: COMPREHENSIVE TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY

As a material condition of the Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall agree that the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR's employees, while receiving funding from the Commission:

- 1. Shall not use tobacco products while using the CONTRACTOR's property e.g., vehicle, equipment;
- 2. Shall not sell, offer or provide tobacco products on CONTRACTOR 's premises;
- 3. Shall have tobacco education and cessation materials visibly available and accessible to clients participating in activities funded by Proposition 10 funds;
- 4. Shall assure that the CONTRACTOR and its employees have no current business association or relationship with the tobacco industry, and further agrees to neither accept nor solicit financial contributions, sponsorships, gifts, or services from any tobacco company, executive, or tobaccorelated function; and
- 5. Shall make a reasonable effort to divest of all investments in companies that derive fifteen percent (15%) or more of their revenues from tobacco.

The Commission may terminate for default or breach of this Contract and any other Contract the CONTRACTOR has with the Commission, if the CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR 's employees, are determined by the Commission Executive Director (or designee), not to be in compliance with the conditions set forth herein.

If the CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR's employees, are determined by the Commission Executive Director (or designee), not to be in compliance with the conditions set forth herein, the Commission may terminate for default or breach of this Contract and any other Contract the Commission has with the CONTRACTOR.

In instances where the CONTRACTOR is part of a larger entity, and where the entity has an investment policy set by governance officials other than the CONTRACTOR, and the CONTRACTOR is not directly involved in such investment decisions, CONTRACTOR agrees to the provisions herein as required in the programs and activities under the direct control of the CONTRACTOR to the satisfaction of the Commission Executive Director (or designee). Activities of the larger entity other than investment decisions, which are not under the direct control of CONTRACTOR, shall not be considered to be in violation of CONTRACTOR's activities pursuant to the policy.



Summary of Activity August 21, 2017 to November 13, 2017

Active Users: 1602 Programs viewed: 1490

Top Five (5) Search Terms *

- 1. General (668)
- 1. Housing (541)
- 2. Counseling (224)
- 3. Food (100)
- 4. Mental Health (94)
- 5. Transportation (89)

Top Five (5) Binders *

- 1. Homeless (903)
- 2. Seniors (735)
- 3. Food Assistance (712)
- 4. Mental Health (677)
- 5. Disabled (599)

Top five (5) viewed programs*

- 1. WIC (101)
- 2. Taxi Voucher Program (80)
- 3. Full Service Partnership (FSP) Adult Program (68)
- 4. Adult Education Programs (61)
- 5. Trails (51)

Source of Program Views:

(24% Search Function ; 76% Binder Function)

Referrals: 34

(44% clicked to email agency - 56% clicked to print info)



Top Three (3) Referred Programs*

- 1. Emergency Shelter and Transitional Housing (9)
- 2. Counseling Services Jewish Family Service of the Desert (9)
- 3. Full Service Partnership and adult program (5)
- 4. New Life (4)
- 3. Transitional Housing (4)
- 3. Outpatient Treatment (4)
- 3. Emergency Shelter (4)
- 3. Counseling Services (4)

* These figures are running totals up to November 13, 2017.